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1. Name of Property

historic name Church of the Redeemer

other names/site number __N/A

2. Location

street & number NA not for publication

city or town Longport Borough O vicinity

state __IsleL\lerseg___ code __03 4 county _Ai:la.nm_c_____ code 001  'zip code 08403
3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended, | hereby certify that this [ nomination
O request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of
Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my opinion, the property
& meets [J does not meet the National Register criteria. | recommend that this property be considered significant

[ nationally /)] statewide (X locally, J(f] See continuation sheet for additional comments.)

A/ :Z.;Ag.‘___
Date

Slgnatu cemfymg offlclalmtle |
stant Commissioner for Natural & Historic Resources /DSHPO
Sta}é gVFederal agency and bureau

\

In my opinion, the property [0 meets ] does not meet the National Register criteria. (D See continuation sheet for additional
comments.)
“Signature of certifying official/Title Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

4. National Park Service Certification

I hereby ceflify that the property is: nature of the Keeper l‘gtioml ReglataP Date of Action
{ /[A entered in the National Register. W? ’ q / /
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[ see continuation sheet.

[ determined eligible for the
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[ see continuation sheet.
O determined not eligible for the
National Register.
[ removed from the National
Register.
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Church of the PRedeemer
Name of Property

Atlantic County, NJ
County and State

5. Classification

Ownership of Property
(Check as many boxes as apply)

Category of Property
(Check only one box)

@ private & building(s)
O public-local O district
O public-State O site

O structure
[ object

(J public-Federal

Name of related multiple property listing
(Enter “NJA"” if property is not part of a multiple property listing.)

N/A

Number of Resources within Property
(Do not include previously listed resources in the count.)

Contributing Noncontributing
1 1 buildings
0 Q sites
0 0 structures
0 0 objects
1 1 Total

Number of contributing resources previously listed
in the National Register

0

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

RELIGION/rellqlous structure

mnm;m&_______
RECREATION AND} CULTURAL /andi IQEI. um

5

Current Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

RELIGION/religious structure
SOCIAL/meeting hall

RECREATION AND CULTURAL[auditorium

7. Description

Architectural Classification
(Enter categories from instructions)

Mission/Spaniéh Colonial Revival

Narrative Description

Materials
(Enter categories from mstructlons)
foundation __ Brick
- walls Stucco
roof Ceramic Tile
other . Stained glass

(Descnbe the historic and current condition of the propeny on one or more continuation shaats)



" Church of the Redesemer
Name of Property

Atlantic County, NJ
County and State

8. Statement of Significance

Appllcable National Register Criteria
(Mark “x” in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property
for National Register listing.)

Kl A Property is associated with events that have made
a significant contribution to the broad patterns of
our history.

B Property is associated with the lives of persons
significant in our past.

C Property embodies the distinctive characteristics
of a type, period, or method of construction or
represents the work of a master, or possesses
high artistic values, or represents a significant and
distinguishable entity whose components lack
individual distinction.

O D Property has yielded, or is likely to yield,
information important in prehistory-or history.

Criteria Considerations:
(Mark “x" in all the boxes that apply.)

Property is:

&l A owned by a religious institution or used for
religious purposes.

O B removed from its original location.

0 C a birthplace or grave.

[0 D a cemetery.

[J E a reconstructed building, object, or structure.
OF a cbmmemorative property.

O G less than 50 years of age or achieved sngmfncance
: within the past 50 years.

. Narrative Statement of Significance

‘Areas of Significance

(Enter categories from instructions)
RELTIGION

HEALTH/MEDICINE
ART

Period of Significance
1908 - 1940

Significant Dates il &I
1908 .

Significant Person .
{Complete if Criterion B is marked above)

_Remington, Professor Joseph P.
Cultural Affiliation
N/A

Architect/Builder ‘
Architects: Duhring, Okie ‘& Ziegler

Builder: Higbee, W.S.

(Explain the significance of the property on one or more continuation sheets.) - -~ — = wmsosrmss s o s o

9. Major Bibliographical References

Bibilography

(Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets.)

Previous documentation on file (NPS): N/A

(0 preliminary determination of individual listing (36
CFR 67) has been requested

[ previously listed in the National Register

O previously determined eligible by the National
Register

[0 designated a National Historic Landmark

[J recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey
#

-~ [ recorded by Historic American Engineering

Record #

Primary location of additional data:

[J State Historic Preservation Office =~~~ =
(O Other State agency
[J Federal agency
&' Local government
University
Other
Name of repository:

" Longport Historical Society




Church of the Redeemer ' ~ Atlantic County, NJ
Name of Property County and State

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of Property .6 acres or 27,500 square feet Ocean City, NJ Quad

UTM References
(Place additional UTM references on a continuation sheet.)

11,8 |540]44,0) [43]51]9,0,09] sl bbby b b by
Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing
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{7 see continuation sheet

Verbal Boundary Description
(Describe the boundaries of the property on a continuation sheet.)

Boundary Justification
(Exptain why the boundaries were selected on a continuation sheet.)

11. Form Prepared By

nametftitle Karen DeRosa, Program Development Specialist

organization Atlantic County Office of Cultural gHeritage Affairs 7/1991
street & number_1333 Atlantic Avenue telephone __(609) 343-2243

city or town Atlantic City state __NJ zip code 08401

Additional Documentation
Submit the following items with the completed form:

Continuation Sheets
Maps

A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) ipdicating the property’s location. . .

A Sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources.
Photographs

Representative black and white photographs of the property.

Additional items
(Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items)

Property Owner
(Complete this item at the request of SHPO or FPO.)

name

street & number telephone

city or town : state_________ zip code

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information is being collected for applications to the National Register of Historic Places to nominate
properties for listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and to amend existing listings. Response to this request is required to obtain
a benefit in accordance with the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470 et seq.).

Estimated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 18.1 hours per response including time for reviewing
instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden estimate or any aspect
of this form to the Chief, Administrative Services Division, National Park Service, P.O. Box 37127, Washington, DC 20013-7127; and the Office of
Management and Budget, Paperwork Reductions Projects (1024-0018), Washington, DC 20503.
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The Church of the Redeemer, located at 20th & Atlantic Avenues,
Longport (see attached Map #1), is a one-story L-shaped plan
influenced by the Spanish Mission/Colonial Revival style of
architecture. It is situated near the end of Absecon Island which
extends into the Great Egg Harbor Bay (see attached Map #2). The
building was originally constructed for the Agassiz Microscopical
Association of Longport in 1908.

This first section of the Church of the Redeemer was designed by
the Philadelphia architectural firm of Duhring, Okie & Ziegler
and built by Atlantic City builder W. S. Higbee between 1908-09
(see Photo #10). Installation of stained glass windows from the
Willet Studios began 1939. A small guild hall was added sometime
between 1941-45. Because of conflicting reference material
associated with the erection of this small guild hall, the date
and builder of this hall is unknown (see attached map #4).

The last change to the Church came in 1946 when the Philadelphia

architectural firm of Karcher and Smith added the present, larger

guild hall and added or remodeled the organ chamber, chancel,

altar and sacristy, as well as completing some decorative interior
‘renovations (see Photos #3-5 and attached map #5). ‘

Built of brick, the church is finished with a rough, thick
application of stucco and sits on a brick foundation that stands
to a height of approximately four feet. (see Photos #1-2). The
original floor plan of the church was an irregular cruciform.
The nave, chancel and altar made up the main axis and the
baptismal and sacristy were the perpendicular arm (see attached
Map #3). This floor plan remained unaltered from 1908-1940.

The entrance facade is composed of a two-story gable with three- -
story square tower .projecting from the northern corner. A large
rose window and six stained glass lancet windows embellish this
facade (see Photo #9). )

A brick stoop with a Spanish-tiled bracketed top, leads to the
square towers double board and batten arched entrance doors (see
Photo #11). The tower contains five stained glass arched windows
at ground level; three arched window openings with a criss-cross
of muntins on the second story; and triple arched openings,
separated by tapered columns, on each side of the third story
(see Photos #1-2). A blue mariners light, a gift to the church
from one of the original parishioners, is located in the third
story.
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Both side elevations are dominated by large round-headed stained
glass windows, three on the northern side and four on the
southern side (see Photos #2 & 12). These windows are divided at
the arch by an entablature that imitates the <classical
entablature of cornice; frieze; and architrave.

The one-story organ chamber (1946) and baptismal (1908) extend
out beyond the main body of the church at the northern elevation
(see Photo #2). Three small rectangular stained glass windows
light the baptismal and two light the organ chamber.

The chancel and altar (1946), extend from the rear gable of the
of the church. The rear wall is composed of a large triple-
arched stained glass window. The side elevations of this section
are identical, each fenestrated by six rectangular attic story
stained glass windows depicting the twelve Apostles (see Photo
#4).

Extending from the southern side of the church is the rectangular
guild hall (1946) (see Photo #1). This one-story side gabled
structure repeats the Spanish style of the original church. The
front facade contains a colonnade of arched window openings
separated by tapered columns, ‘similar to those in the third story
of the tower. Two projecting gables, one of which serves as the
main entrance to the guild hall, flank the colonnade (see Photo
#3).

The gable end of the hall contains a miniature rose window with
two pairs of arched windows below that is similar to the main
rose on the front facade (see Photo #13). Two more cross gables
project from the rear of the guild hall, an extended secondary
roof spans between them. One rear cross. gable contains a large
round-headed window identical to the nave windows (see Photo #4).

The interior walls of the 1908 section of the church are
covered with 3 inch wide flush horizontal boards with beveled
edges finished in a dark stain (see Photo #14). The brick
foundation wraps around the perimeter of the interior, repeating
the exterior foundation pattern. The foundation meets the 6 inch
tongue and groove joint floor boards that are original to the
church (see Photo #15). The nave is separated from the choir
section by a change in the floor height, a railing and a framed
archway that reaches up to the trusses (see Photo #18).
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The nave consists of two sections of pews; measuring

. approximately 12 feet 1long each in 16 rows, and a central
aisle; measuring approximately 5 feet wide (see Photo #17). The
central aisle is the only means to reach the altar as the pews
abut to the side interior walls. The floor boards are exposed
except for the center aisle, where carpet was installed in 1978
(see Photo #15). The nave is simple in plan and devoid of any
decoration, aside from the small cruciform carvings on the center
aisle end of each pew and the wrought iron chandeliers, installed
in 1946.

Karcher and Smith, in addition to designing the new guild hall
and increasing the depth of the chancel and sanctuary, were
responsible for new interior appointments, such as a new pulpit,
lectern, chancel rail, choir stalls, and a baptistry (see Photos
#18-20). In a booklet by Karcher and Smith (see Appendix A), the
architects promoted the interior renovations by suggesting that,

"church families give memorials in memory of their families
- which will perpetuate their ties with this summer church for
all time . " \

Clear interior photographs of the church prior to 1946 do not
exist, so it is hard to distinguish just how much this renovation
altered the original interior.

The rafter trussing is a king post system with common rafters and
purlins spanning between the principal rafters (see Photo #24).
At the roof and wall junction the rafters are notched. There is
an open rake where both the rafters and purlins are exposed Each
gable end is protected by a simple verge board.

The current stained glass windows were all designed in 1939.Most
of the windows were installed in 1939-40, and the rest over a
period of twelve years, as they were donated (see Appendix C).
The Willet Stained Glass Studios from Philadelphia were retained
by then Longport Mayor Edwin M. Lavino (Mayor 1922-1943) to
design and install them. The chancel windows, a gift of the
Lavino family, were the first to be dedicated on September 3,
1939 with a special service given by the Rt. Reverend Wallace J.
Gardner, D.D. Bishop of New Jersey.

The Willet Studios designed the windows specially for the church,
to fit into the original window openings. The original windows
were a series of small rectangular panes approximately 7" x 5" of
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yellow and pale green glazed glass, held together by lead cames
(see Photo #5). These windows were re-installed in the 1946
additions to the church, most 1likely as a construction cost
saving measure. -

All of the interior window surrounds, except those of the chancel

windows, are undecorated (see Photos #16, 19 & 21). The chancel
window surrounds are intricately carved, a result of the 1946

renovation (see Photo #23). The center of each of the chancel

windows is topped with a cruciform. Each window is separated by

pillars topped with finials. :

The altar cross, 6 lanterns in the nave over the pews, the pulpit
lantern, and the baptismal lantern are all composed of wrought
iron and chrome (see Photos #17-19 & 24). Each one was designed
and executed by John 2Zimmer, a Philadelphia master metal
craftsman, for Karcher and Smith in 1946. These lanterns replaced
the original wrought iron gas light fixtures of which there is no
existing documentation.

The parsonage is located at the southern portion of the lot (see
attached Map #1). It was built sometime between 1952-54 by
Livingston Smith. The Spanish Mission design and the building
materials are similar to the original church and its additions
(see Photo #6). It seems that every effort was made to make this
structure compatible with the church. The surrounding landscaping
elements, such as large shade trees, have created a buffer
between the church and parsonage, as not to detract from the
commanding presence of the church.

The Spanish Mission/Colonial Revival form is not a common .
architectural style in Atlantic County. This is the only example
of this type in Longport. Two historic building surveys,
‘Atlantic City Historic Building Survey’, 1980 and ‘Atlantic
County Historic Buildings Survey’, 1986 (see -bibliography),
outline only three other prevalent Spanish-influenced buildings,
in addition to the Church of the Redeemer. They are:

o Saint Peter’s Church, Spanish Mission, ca.1890’s,
Pleasantville, altered

o All Saints Episcopal Church, Spanish Colonial, ca.l1l910,
Atlantic City

o Church of the Ascension, Spanish Renaissance, 1893,
Atlantic City, National Register
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In comparison, the Church of the Redeemer is more simple in plan,

- form- and -decorative details. Even though two of the three
churches predate the Church of the Redeemer, there is no
documented evidence that either church influenced the Church of
the Redeemers’ own design.

The Church of the Redeemers’ uniqueness is attributed to the fact
that its exterior and most importantly, its setting, has remained
visually intact (see Photos #6-8). The above listed churches
are located in two municipalities, Atlantic city and
Pleasantville, where an overwhelming amount of changes have taken
place through the years. These three churches, perhaps
independently important, do not possess the integrity of setting
of the Church of the Redeemer.
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The Church of the Redeemer is an important landmark of Longport,
New Jersey. Built in 1908, it grew out of the activities of the
"Agassiz Association of Longport," which was founded in the
1880s--the earliest years of this seashore resort. The
Association, which from the beginning was concerned with the
"reconciliation of science and religion," gradually evolved into
a Protestant Episcopal church. The principal leader of the
organization, Joseph Price Remington, built a cottage in Longport
in 1884 and spent his summers there until his death. Remington
(1847-1918) was a major figure in American pharmaceutical
history, and during a long career as both Professor of Pharmacy
and Dean of the Philadelphia College of Pharmacy, he did most of
his writing in Longport. With his house now gone, the Church of
the Redeemer is the principal Longport landmark associated with
Remington’s life. Remington donated the land for this church and
money to construct the building, and he laid the cornerstone. The
Church of the Redeemer meets Criterion A for religion and
Criterion B for association with Remington. The church also meets
Criterion C for its unusually fine stained glass work executed by
the Willets Stained Glass Studio of Philadelphia, which was
designed in 1939 and installed during a 13 year period 1939-52.
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Professor Remington came to Longport for the first time in
approximately 1883, as did many Philadelphians. The lure of the
sea and the open land created a haven for the City born
'residents. In 1884, Remington built a summer cottage, at 19th and
the Ocean, for himself and his wife, Elizabeth Baily Collins.
Remington did most of his writing for the United States
Pharmacopoeia and Remington’s Pharmaceutical Practices at this
Longport cottage; however, this house was destroyed by fire in
1911.

Considered by his peers to be the, "founding Father of American
pharmacy", Joseph Remington was a significant leader in the
pharmaceutical industry. Beginning in 1871 as an assistant at the
Philadelphia College of Pharmacy, Professor Remington devoted
nearly 50 years of professional service by teaching and creating
regulatory procedures in the field of pharmacy. Remington was
born of Quaker ancestry. Largely self-taught, he became an
apprentice at the age of sixteen to Charles Ellis, who at the
time was president of the College of Pharmacy in Philadelphia. By
age nineteen, he received a degree of graduate pharmacy from
Ellis’ institution. After graduation, he was employed for three
years in the Brooklyn, NY, laboratories of manufacturing
pharmacist, Dr. Edward R. Squibb. In 1867 he became a member of
the American Pharmaceutical Association and was its president in
1892.In 1893, he presided over the meetings of the International
Pharmaceutical Congress at the Chicago World’s Fair. He opened
his own apothecary shop at the corner of 13th and Walnut Streets
in Philadelphia in 1872, where he continued in business for
thirteen years.

Remington has been noted as "the most dominant figure in the
history of the Philadelphia College of Pharmacy for the past 100
years." His service began in 1871, Jjust five years after his
graduation from the college. At the age of 24, Remington was an
assistant in the college, a frequent speaker at college meetings
and a contributor to its Journal. By 1874, Remington was elected
as Chair of Pharmacy. He was made Director of the Pharmaceutical

Laboratory in 1878, and was elected Dean of the College in 1893.

The promotion of research was his greatest service to the
industry. 1In 1877 he began a 40 year involvement in the revising
of the United States Pharmacopoeia, a book containing a list of

drugs, their formulas, methods for making medicinal preparations
and other related information, which was revised every ten years.
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He chaired the Revision Committee for over three decades and in
this capacity he was responsible for the development of standards
and tests for hundreds of drugs and their various dosage forms.
He also invented or improved laboratory apparatus. No man of his
time directed or analyzed more research. Remington was also an

editor of the United States Q;gpgg_g;g;z, from the 15th through
the 20th editions.

His most important published work was his text book, Remington’s
Practice of Pharmacy. He first issued this text in 1885, a year
after establishing his summer home in Longport, where he did most
of this writing. The book has since passed through many editions
and has been translated into other languages. (Now Xknown as
Remington’s Pharmaceutical Sciences, it is still in publication
today, the copyright belongs to the College and the. proceeds from
the sale of the book support the Remlngton Memorial Professorship
of Pharmacy.)

Remington died in Philadelphia on New Year’s Day, 1918, after
completing nearly fifty years of service to the College,
including forty-four years as a professor of Theory and Practice
of Pharmacy. He served as Dean of the College from 1893 until his
death. His alma mater described him as, "that rare combination of
master scientist and master executive, ... the foremost figure in

American Pharmacy." In recognition of his many contributions,
the New York branch of the American Pharmaceutical Association,
~in 1919, established the Remington Honor Medal. This award is

still given annually to an individual who has rendered
distinguished service to pharmacy in the United States.

Remington’s involvement with the sciences led him to co-found the .
Agassiz Microscopical Society, and to serve as its first
President, a title he held until his death. The society was
organized in Chester County, Pennsylvania in 1881 at the home of
poet and fellow co-founder, Sara Louise Oberholtzer. She also
built a summer cottage in Longport in 1883, but it, too, has not
survived.

Evidently, the founders of the Agassiz Microscopical Soc1ety were
inspired by the writings of Professor Jean Louise Agassiz of
Harvard, his wife, Elizabeth Carey Agassiz, first president of
Radcliffe, and their son, Alexander. Their book entitledqd,
Seaside Studies in Natural History, published in 1865 intrigued

both Oberholtzer and Remington, and they began their own
teachings in their Philadelphia homes. From the beginning, the
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society had a religious purpose. Remington believed that

the organization was "a happy venture in Christian Unity and the
reconciliation of science and religion in those days of the 19th
Century where the study of Darwin’s QOrigin of the Species had
become a great factor in the struggle between evolution and
Biblical interpretation.” It was these common interests that
united into what became the teaching and preaching fundamentals
of the Church of the Redeener.

When the Remington and Oberholtzer families settled in Longport,
they reorganized and renamed the Society, which then became the
Agassiz Association of Longport. Its primary purpose became the
study of objects in their natural surroundings. The closeness of
the ocean caused a strong interest in, marine algae and sea
mosses. Members would walk along the beaches of Longport, and
with a long-handled hook they would bring in specimens of algae
and moss, identify them and press them onto cardboard for further
study. (This seems to have been widely practiced; for example,
Mrs. Irene McCullough, wife of the founder of Longport, Mr.
Simpson McCullough (mayor 1889-1901), submitted a series of
- mosses to the Columbian Exposition of 1893, for which she
received a bronze award.) '
Between 1883-1890, the Association met at the homes of Remington
and Oberholtzer. During this time the meetings grew in interest,
and the members decided to build a hall to be used as a social
meeting place for the community. The cornerstone was laid in 1890
and prayers were offered by the Reverend Herman L. Duhring Sr. of
the Protestant Episcopal Mission in Philadelphia, a long-time
friend of Remington. By 1902 this small, one story building was
no longer functional, so the entire building was lifted and a new
first story inserted beneath it.

The Association continued to grow and by 1907 a new, larger
building was needed. At that time, Remington owned an entire
block between 19th and 20th Avenues, which he decided to donate,
together with $4,000 for the construction of a new building. The
church rose the following year, designed by the Philadelphia
architectural firm of Duhring, Okie and Ziegler and built by W.S.
Higbee of Atlantic City. The cornerstone ceremonies were held on
October 17, 1908 and the first service was held less than a year
later on July 4, 1909. The Agassiz Association met in this
building for ten years, from 1909-1919.
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Family connections apparently determined the choice of
- architectural firms. Herman Louis Duhring Jr., R. Brognard Okie
and Carl A. Ziegler began their collaboration in 1899. They
continued together until 1918. It seems likely that they gained
the Longport commission through Duhring Sr.’s acquaintance with
Remington, since they are not known to have done any other work
in Longport. The church is an unusual example of their work. The
firm was most noted for work . of the Philadelphia School, a
mixture of Cotswold and Pennsylvania Farmhouse designs primarily
associated with regional architecture in Pennsylvania. Their
early designs were also used in some residential developments in-
Philadelphia at the turn of the century. Later, both as a firm
and individually, they became known for their interest in the
restoration of Pennsylvania landmarks. Okie is associated with
the restoration of the Betsy Ross House in Philadelphia and the
reconstruction of of William Penn‘’s estate" Pennsbury Manor" in
Tullytown, Pa.. Zeigler is associated with the restoration of
Independence Hall and Carpenters’ Hall in Philadelphia.

This Spanish Mission styled church is one of perhaps nine
Duhring, Okie and Ziegler buildings in New Jersey; it is the only
one known in Atlantic County. The other buildings were built
chiefly near Philadelphia, including five in Riverside, one in
Camden, one in Delanco; one was built in Wildwood Crest. These
buildings were constructed between 1899-1908, but whether they
survive is unknown.

The Agassiz Association of Longport no longer exists; its
demise appears to have been associated with the death of
Remington and the other co-founders of the movement. After
Remington died, the Longport congregation formally affiliated
with the Protestant Episcopal Church. Regular summer services are
still held at the Church of the Redeemer, but even that
congregation is beginning to slowly dwindle away. The.church is
the only physical representative of the Association that survives
in southern New Jersey. Even though the teachings of the
association have faded, its ideals and theories are still alive
in the conflicts between Darwinism and evolution in present-day
theological issues.

The Church of the Redeemer is also important for its stained
glass windows, which represent the artistic work of a master.
These windows were designed, produced and installed by the Willet
Stained Glass Studios of Philadelphia. Most of the windows were
given by then-Mayor Edwin M. Lavino (mayor 1922-1943) and his
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family, in memory of his mother, Alma Joly Lavino. Mayor Lavino
contracted the Willet Stained Glass Studios to complete the
project. The Willet Studios executed all 34 windows in the 1908
section of the church. The rose window and six lancet windows
below 1it, three chancel windows and seven nave windows were
installed in 1940 and dedicated on August 4. The other windows
were installed over the next 12 years as people gave memorial
gifts.

The Willet Studios were founded in Pittsburgh by William and Anne
Lee Willet. William (1867-1921), born in New York City, studied
with William Merritt Chase and at the Mechanics and Tradesman
Institute, now know as Cooper Union. By 1910 Willet won the
International Competition to make the windows for the new Cadet
Chapel at West Point. (Windows for West Point continued under the
original contract every year until 1976, the longest continuous
commission in stained glass in the United States.)

The Willets moved back to Philadelphia in 1913 where William
Willet died eight years later in 1921. The firm continued under
Anne Lee and her son Henry Lee Willet (1899-1983.) Anne Lee
retired in 1934, she died in 1943. Under William Willet the
Studio obtained some prominent commissions, including:

- Proctor Hall, Princeton University

Trinity Cathedral, Cleveland

- Dante and Beatrice, now in the Corning Glass Museum

World War I Memorial Window in Trinity Episcopal
Church, Syracuse, New York

Henry Lee Willet was interested in the challenge of reproducing -
medieval stained glass. Many traditional neo-gothic designs were
produced by George Gugert (designer of all the windows in the
church except the Rose Window by John Kevorkian) and Marguerite
Gaudin, who joined the Studio in 1931 and who are still (1989)
involved in the design process.

This second generation of the Willet Studio proved to be an
innovator in the art of stained glass production and was one of
the first to work in faceted glass, glass dalles set in cement or
epoxy. The firm developed the "gold window", stained glass with
a gold leafed, repousse lead sheet overlay and experimented with
laminations called "gemmaux", and "farbigem". It also received
world-wide recognition by producing stained glass windows for the
American Research Hospital in Krakow, Poland; the American
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Lutheran Churdhvin’Oslo, Norway, and; St. Anselm’s Meguro Church
~in Tokyo, Japan. Some other prominent commissions were:

- Children’s Chapel in the National Episcopal Cathedral,
Washington DC

- Covenant Presbyterian Church, Charlotte, NC

- Princeton University Chapel, Princeton, NJ

- Cathedral of St John the Divine, New York Clty

- National Presbyterian Church, Washington, DC

- Church Center at the United Nations, New York City

- Museum of Science and Technology built for the
World’s Fair in New York City, 1964

In 1965, E. Crosby Willet, son of Henry was made President of the
‘Studio and Henry became Chairman of the Board. By then the Willet
Studio was the largest in the United States and continued to add
the names of the most prominent commission to their list:

‘Associates Dining Room, Smithsonian Institute,
Washington, DC ‘

Washington'Hall, West Point \

National Temple of The Latter Day Saints, Ken51ngton MD

United Methodist Church, Kinswood, TX .

Gore Associates, Cherry Hill, MD (a two-story high
window)

The windows in the Church of the Redeemer represent the only
example of Willet Stained Glass known in Atlantic County and one
of only possibly four examples in New Jersey. The Willet Studio,
purchased in 1977 by the Hauser Stained Glass Studio of Winona,
Minnesota, it is still under the artistic control of descendants
of the original founding family. The company has representatives
in 52 U.S. states and territories, and in 14 foreign countries.

Appendix B contains a complete detailed description of the
windows installed in the Church of the Redeemer, written by Henry
Lee Willet.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The Church of the Redeemer occupies Block 15, Lot 10 as identified
by the 1989 Longport Borough Tax Maps.

VERBAL BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION

The nominated property includes land historically associated with
the Church of the Redeemer.
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PHOTOGRAPHIC INVENTORY

The following information (#1-5) is identical for all of the
photographs submitted with the Church of the Redeemer National
Register nomination:

1. Church of the Redeemer

2. Location: Longport Borough, Atlantic County, New Jersey

3. Photographer: Donna Lenzi, Graphic Artist, Atlantic County
Government

4, Date of Photo: July 20, 1988

5. Negatives Located: Atlantlc County Office of Cultural &
Heritage Affairs, 1333 Atlantic Avenue, Atlantic City, New
~Jersey 08401

The following information differs for each photograph and is
listed individually below and keyed to the accompanying maps.

Photographic Number: #1 . '

6. Description/Direction of View: front view with 1946 guild
hall /east
Photographic Number: #2

6. Description/Direction of View: rear with one-story baptismal
& organ chamber sections/west

Photographic Number: #3 :
6. Description/Direction of View: front facade, 1946 guild hall
addition/southeast

Photographzc Number: #4 )
6. Description/Direction of View: rear with guild hall in
foreground, altar to far left/north

Photographic Number: #5
6. Descrlptlon/Dlrectlon of View: rear guild hall gable with
original window treatment/north

Photographic Number: #6
6. Description/Direction of View: church and parsonage from
20th Avenue/east

Photographic Number: #7
6. Descrlptlon/Dlrectlon of View: corner of Atlantic and 20th
looking towards Beach Avenue/southwest
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Photographic Number: #8
Descrlptlon/Dlrectlon of View:

north side of Atlantic and

20th looking towards 19th Avenue/southeast

Photographlc Number: #9
Descrlptlon/Dlrectlon of View:

front facade with tower and

partial guild hall to left/east

Photographlc Number: #10
Description/Direction of View:
corner stone/south’

Photographic Number: #11
Description/Direction of View:
bracketed top/east

Photographic Number: #12
Description/Direction of View:
elevation/northeast

Photographic Number: #13
Description/Direction of View:
guild hall/northwest '

Photographic Number: #14

Description/Direction of View:"

entrance/northwest

Photographic Number: #15
Description/Direction of View:
pews/southeast

Photographic Number: #16
Description/Direction of View:

tower base with entrance and
entrance doors in tower ﬁith
guild hall and side

far left side elevation of
from nave into tdwer

from rear of nave towards

from rear of nave towards

interior wall elevation/northeast

Photographic Number: #17
Descrlptlon/Dlrectlon of View:
rose window/west

Photographic Number: #18
Descrlptlon/Dlrectlon of View:
baptismal/north :

Photographic Number: #19
Descr1pt10n/Direction of View:

Photographic Number: #20
Description/Direction of View:

from front of nave towards

front of nave facing

baptismal/north

sacristy/east
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 Photographic Number: #21
6. Description/Direction of View: rose window/west

Photographic Number: #22 :
6. Description/Direction of View: two of the six lancet windows
below the rose/west :

Photographic Number: #23
6. Description/Direction of View: chancel windows/east

Photographic Number: #24
6. Description/Direction of View: wrought iron lanterns in
nave/east



| N Map Title:___Church of the Redeemer: Sketch Map
' B Map Number:_1

} Scale: —__none

¥ Prepared By:based on: Longport Borough Tax Map, John J. Holland, A.L.P
f Date:__ April 1989
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Map Title: Church of the Redeemer: Floor Plan circa1908-1941
MapNumber;: 3
: none ’

Scale:
Prepared By:__Karen DeRosa, Atlantic County Office of Cultural & Heritage Affairs
Date: = - April 1989,




NP8 Form 10-000-4 OMB Approvel No. 10240018
(o]

United States Department of the interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Church of the Redeemer;- Longport Borough,
Section number _Map Page 4 Atlantic County, NJ

Map Title:____Church of the Redeemer: Floor Plan circa 1941-1945
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Map Key ' ' < l}
| |

Photographic number
Note: Darkened area within circle indicates the direction of the camera.

Map Title: h
Map Number:_§

¥ Scale: none
Prepared By:
Date: July 1991,
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The following excerpts are from a booklet by the architects Karcher & Smith
describing the new architectural features of the church, circa 1946.
(see bibliography)




Appendix A, Church of the Redeemer, Longport Borough, Atlantic County, NJ

ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES AND S$YMBOLISM OF CARVINGS IN THE CHANCEL
WALTER T. KARCHER and LIVINGSTON SMITH

Architects, Pinladelphia, Pennsylvania

The Altar

THE CROSS carved in the center of the Altar is a modificatian of the type known as the Capterbury Cross.
The Carvings on the ends of the Altar consist of Wheat and Grapes symbolizing bread and wine.

On the top of the Altar are five small Greek crosses, symbeds of the five wounds of our-Lord. They are incised, one
at cach of the four corners and a ffth i the center, as s the ancient custom.

The Reredos
(N THE LONG vertical pancls on the pilasters are the Jollowing symbols:

1. The Rose — uscd in a conventional form and its use dating back to the 13th Century, the Rose refers to lsaiah's
prophecy: “The desert shall blussom as the rose at the coming of the Kingdom of rightcousness.™

2. The Lily — a common and popular symbol of Our Lord’s Resurrection; hlooming, as it docs, at F::lstcrl.idc.

3. The Pomegranate — a symbol of the Resurrection, likening our Lord’s bursting of the tomb on Easter Day, to
the bursting quality of the fruit. Also, it is regarded as a typc of resurrection of all true belicvers in- Jesus Chnst. It has
been used to symbolize royalty, hope, the future life and fertility. In Exodus 28: V. 33-34, we read of its use on the robes
of Aaron. Then, too, St. Gregory the Great speaks of its symbaolizing the unity of the Church.

4. The Gladiolus — a symbol of the Incarnation.

At the basc and to the right of the Reredos is shown a fish, a very carly Christian symbol.  In the first century this
usage was of profound significance to the early Christian. Obscursd by pagan persccutors, its meaning was a sermon to he-
iievers, expressing through a rebus the Gicek word “IXOYC” maemine fish and indicating the fact of man's need of a
Saviuur and his salavation only through Jesus Chnst. The derivation of the IXOYC symbal is: '

| =Inoois
X =XpioTos
©=0eoll
Y=Yios
C =Zwtip

These Greck initial letters of “fish™ are t¢ be found carved to the left of the Reredos. . ‘ L

Below these letters is a symbol of the Trinity, called the Triguetra, Mystical in its symbolism, it is simple in form
and full of meaning, reminding us of many important truths,

The three ares of the circle denote the Three Devine Persons and their union expresses the unity of divine essence.
The continuity of the form symbolizes cternity while the fact that they are interwoven denotes the indivisibility of the
Blessed Trinity. The Triguetry, an cquilateral triangle, is the most ancient of Trinity symbaols, each pair of arcs forming a
vesica, the symbol of glory.

In the center of the Reredus, at the basc of the Brass Altar Cross, is carved a small Cross and Crown of Thorns.




T

Appendix A, Church of the Redeemer, Longport Borough, Atlantic County, NJ

The Credence Niches

4iE MQNOGRAM to the left of the Altar — “Chi Rho™ == This is among the most ancient of the so-called monograms

of our Lord Jesus Christ. It is the abbrivaton of the word “Christ.”™  This name of our Savi.n.ur was spelied
ICTOC in ancient Greek unicals, the Jetter C having been used instead of the letter Sigmid, more fnmflmr in our day.
«ing the first two letters of this word XPictoc, the abbreviation XP was the result, This is called Chi Rho, from the
ncs of the Greek letters X .and P.

The Chi Rho symbol has been brought to light by archealogists. It was used in the catacombs as well as on comns,
\ps, pottery and other objects used by the carly Christians. The form of the Chi Rho used in the carving in the Church
' ! ]
the Redeemer is taken from similar forms on ancicnt tombs.
.

The monogram on the niche to the right of the Altar is IHC. Even more popular :oday, l?ut 110( quiic 0 ::nciCnF as
: Chi Rho symbol, is the IHC. This is the abbreviation of the Greck word “IHCOYC, meaning Jesus. Often it is
atten THS. The form THS is not so goud as the ancient THC, which is historically and traditionally the better form, and
rtainly produces a more balanced composition whin used in church decoration. .

It is commonly supposed that IHS stands for lesus Honunum Salvator, and cvcn' goud .dictinna.aries" have been kn.own .
statc this notorious erpor. The three Latin words just men tioned meaning “Jesus, SilV.IOUT of .Mankmd. are C(.)mp:\rauvcl)t
odern.  They are usually credited to a somewhat accentric monk known as St. Bernardine of Sicnna, who dled.m 1444. He
said to have carried about with him this motto, written on i bit of parchment.  The carly Church knew nothing of such «

:bus.

The Bishop Chair and Sedelia

)N THE BACK of the Bishop's Chair is carved the Bishops Mitre and Cruss, and on the back of the scats of the Sedelia

opposite are two plain Greck Crosses.

The Baptistry

)VER THE opening into the Baptistry is shown a Cross with the lctters NIKA. The word NIKA may rcquire cxplana-

tion. When Constantine the Great was not yet.a Christian there appeared this sign in the heavens and a voice told
im “In this sign thou shall conquer!™ Therefore this word NIKA ¢ombined with a Cross had the ancient significance of
Jesus the Conqueror™ or *Jesus Conquers.™ .

Over the opening opposite the Baptistry on the north wall is a similar Cross with the letters INRI mecaning “lesus
lazaremus Rex ludacorum,” or “Jesus of Nazarcth, King of the Jews.™

ot m ot

Acknowledgment is made to “Church Symbolism™ hy . R, \\’c})hcr' for much of the above material. LS.

~

THE ALTAR CROSS AND LANTERNS

The Cross on the altar is composed of wrought iron and chrome.  Symbols of the four evangelists in brass quadra
vils enrich the ends of the arms of the cross.

1
The matching flower vases are of brass sct in wrought iron bascs, in the form of crowns, remincacent of vpr Lord's

vords “be thou faithful unto death and 1 will give thec a crown of life.” The pulpit and lcctern lanterns carry on the

:eneral design. Pattern with motifs of the sca, alternating with Greek Crosses all designed and executed by John Zimmer-
nan, Philadelphia master metal craftsman.
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Description of the windows designed for the Church by the Willet Stained Glass Studios.
(see bibliography)
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DESCRIPTION OF THE WINDOWS DESIGNED FOR THE
CHURCH OF-THE REDEEMER — LONGPORT, NEW JERSEY

. ' All Windows Conceived, Designed, and Executed by
HENRY LEE WILLET, PHILADELPHIA

JN COMPLETING the iconography for the windows in the Church of the Redeemer, Longport, great thought was given to

the function of the Church in the Community, with the purpose of recapturing for the Church the place in the people’s
lives that it held in medieval times when it was not only the center of their lives, but the outstanding and most heautiful cdifice
in the Community as well. The desire was to create windows which would make the Church a jeweled Chapel, filling the be-
holder with a great desire to worship.
The scenes and subjects which unfold themselves in the windows, as one sits and contemplates and studies them, show
the Way of Salvation for all mankind. The human race, in order to survive, must of nccessity realize that no schemes or
panaceas give any permancnt solution to its problems except the actual practice of Christianity.




The Chancel Window

THE CHANCEL WINDOW, situated as it is, depicts the preaching and missionary aspects of the Gospel, the calling and

sending forth of the Disciples of Christ.  As one would sit before the window in quict meditation there would fiest ap-
pear the figure of our Lord preaching from the boat. Instead of completing the scene of the asscmbled multitude on the bank
ot the River, the idea was to symbolize the fact that Christ was not only preaching to the people just at the moment but to
the people of all ages. Thus the congregation b the Chapel at Longport completes the scene. Tn the smadl medallion below
15 symbolized that part of our religion of those who have receis wd the message and must spread it to all lands and all people
Thus medallion shows Paul starting out with the open Book on one of his nussionary journcys. Paul had a great message,
which is true ffor all who wish to spread the Gospel: as he first had to be converted and hc.hu.-‘ s m back of Paul 15 shown
his conversion on the way to Damascus. The medalhons in the side lancets are scencs from-Christ's minstry related to the
sca. The miraculous draught of fishes—"Launch out mito the deep and let down your ncts for a draughe™; l'lu.. call ot the
fishermen—"Follow me and I will niake you fishers of men™; Christ asleep in the boat is awakened by the disciples to calm
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the storm “Lord, sive us: we porish™; and Peter rushing to Chirist as He walks upon the water
| ]

O thou of hule faith,
\\lurd'un. didst thou duul»l""

In the border are symbaols of the sea and related clements, the sun, the moon, the stars, the rain, the show, and the
wind. In the side lancets are symbolic figures halding jars which pour out the waters which make the rivers and end in the
acean.  The conventional leaf pattern is developed from scaweed, shells, and other sea forms which are introduced to make
the border interesting and keep it trom being toa stercotype, while in the background are lietle boats and sca-gulls.
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The Apostles Windows

L
ok ',‘ fﬁ

o HNE o,

THE TWELVE small windows in the chancel create a rich fricze of color in cathedral glass which form the bond between
the altar windows and the larger windows in the inive of the church. Those ncarer the altar contain more of the decp

zlear blue of the windows above it As they approach thic entrance to the chancel they contain more of the rick waru tones
‘vund in the windows in the nave.

-

In the central window over the altar Chrise, the Redec mer, may be ‘seen standing in a boat with his arm uplifted in-
sting the modern disciples to follow Him and become fishers of men.

The twelve Apostles are the subject manter of these windows.  In cach instance the Apostle is confessing his
ath in Christ as Redeemer of the World, Commencing on the left, there is John the Baptist, in place of Judas Iscariot, as
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h: cried, “"Beholdithe Lamb of God!™ when he was standing with two of the disciples as Jesus passed by, Then there is St
Andrew and his great tnbute, “We have found the Messiah™; Pheliip, when he interrupted Nathaniel's discussion about the
Mussiah to say, “Come and sce!™: Matthew, the publican who “lert all and followed Him™; St. John, the beloved duzaple who
declared, “The word was made flesh and dwelt among us™; and finally St. fames, who accepted our blessed Lord’s challenye,
“We can drink of the cup.”™

On the right side, beginning at the altar, there is Peter and his great confession, “Thou art the Chrst™: then Thaddeus,
“Thou wilt manifest thysell™; Sumon, "We have no master but God™; of St James the Less, “Atter that he was seen of
Jomes™: then Bartholomew, “Son of ‘God, King of Isracl™; and last, St. Thomas, who when Christ appeared after His resur- -
cection to the disciples, "My Lord and my God.™




-
The Rose Window
IN THE ROSE WlNl)()\\}' which the people sce as they leave the Church to go qut and dwell among their fcllowmen, is
depicted the Sermon on the Mouny, Chnist’s great sovial paspel. The purpose belund the selection of this subject was tu
nake the people realize that Christianty is not merely something o discuss at 3 Church service, but something to actually put
! ¢ . . . . .
te action, for m this great sermon Christ has iven us a code ob telationship for living one with the other. In the center of the
it s .

Rose Window is shown Christ Himsclf on the mount delivering His message. People are prone to think that the Sermon on
the Mount consists only of the seatitudes, whercas this is only an introduction to a preat message which covers the Fifth,
Sixth, and Scventh Chapters of Matthew  The twelve salient pusnts in this message are treaicd in a decorative manner with
the sparit of Chirist symbolized by a figure separat-
ing the forces of good and evil. The purpose was
to have a figure which was Christ-like, but not the
actual figure of Christ. In ather words, this spirit
of Christ is for all times and all places. Beginning
at the spoke of the left bottom, six and a half
o'clock, and going clock-wise, we have:

1. Lct your light so shine before men that
thcy may sce your good works and glorify your
Father which is in Heaven. To the right, figures
arc trying to hide the light, but the light is on a
hill which cannot be hid. The Christ-like spirit
. Feytd ST pervades in every direction as the beams of light

2 ) y spread over the figures.
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. 2. Love your enemies: do good to them that
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hate you. Evil figure is about to set out to perse-
cutc and destroy those whom he hates, while the
ool spirit is taking gifts to one who has despite-
tully treated ‘iil‘li.

3. Docst thine alims in secret. The ovil figure,
proud as a iw:u‘nck, is poing about trumpeting the
fact that he has given a small amount of his riches
to the poor, while the true spirit is unscen by his
fellow-men, symbolizing the giving of the aifts
hidden by a tree.

4. Lay not up for yourscll treasures upon carth, buat Ly up for yourselt tecasures in heaven, Foolish mien are shawn

sittmg placidly, behind them their bags of wold, but an imp is commy in, and unknown to them, is stealing ther gold away
The true spirit is doing kindness to his under-privileped brother.

5. Cannot serve two masters. One of the greatest ovils of today is men foeolishly thisking that by compromising the
clicets of evil, they can accomplish anything,
6. Consider the lilics of the ficdd, they tonl naot neither Jdo they spin.

If we put our faith in Christ and do what 1s
cight waith our fellow-men, we need not worry about the moriow,

7. Judge not that ye be not judged. Casting out the mote in my brother’s eye only leads to war and destruction. Only
through removing the beam in our own cye and trying to work justice can peace and happiness reign on earth.

o
o,

Neither cast ye your pearls before swane, fest they tample them under their feet, and turn again and-rend you.

Y. I yc then, being cvil, know hew to give good gifts unto your children, how much more shall your Father which
is in heaven give good things to them that ask Him.
10, The two ways: the narrows e and the broad way.

Straight is the way and narrow is the gate which leadeth
sato dife. Few there be who find 1.

11. False prophcts in sheep's clothing. False teicher hiding his sheepskin holding the book of his evil teachings in his
harids symbalized by a serpent on the cover. The true spirit is symbolized by an angel figure.

12, The two types of life: one founded on the sand, and the other founded on a rock.
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The Six lmn;cbWindnws

LLOW THIS ROSE 15 i serwes of six windows, deprotnyg the Twenty-fitth Chapter of Matthew, verses tharty-ive, thirty six.
“For 1 was an hungered, and yo gave me meat: 1 was thissty, and ye gave me drink; 1 was a stranger, and ve took me

- Naked. and ye clothed me: 1 owas sick, and yo visited me: | owas in prison, and ye came unto me.”
These windows are an the level of the ey, and are treatad accordingly.  The upper part of the pancls are examples
howing the older generation and the proper way ot life, while at the bottom there are little scenes depicting how children, in

thew way, can be kind to their unfortunate younger brothers and sisters and friends, and also to their companione, the animals
The hittle boy is feeding the dog. Children are feeding the eate sod birds. The little wirl i putting back into the bird’s nest a
tiny bird which has fallen from its home.  The boy is putting his cloak around a younger child protecting it from the stormy
Blast. The litde girl is picking fowers to take to a sick fricnd. The Tntde boy releases a0 limb which has become entangled
the briars.

While these windows conform to the best principles of stamed glass, heing depicted in a flat and decorative manner, to
avoid all naturalistic effects, yet they do not ape any early windows. They are entirely fresh and original in design and exceu
tion, avoiding all fadism or grotesqueness, just as in the story they are to tell. It is an old story with an ever new meaning,
So these windows have heen carricd out with the best principle: of medicval windows with an entirely fresh approach
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THE SEVEN NAVE WINDOWS

The Seven Scenes in Our Lord’s Life chosen for these Windows are:
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The Nativity, the Epiphany, the Baptism, the Transfiguration,
the Crucifixion, the Resurrection, and the Ascension
IN THE NAVE, the body of the Church, the plan was to depict in
the windows the example of Christ's own life, which we were
given to tollow, the perfect life we must all strive to live. The Seven
Scenes in Qur Lord's life chosen for these windows are the Nativity,
the Epiphany, the Baptism, the Transfiguration, the Crucifixion, the
Resurrection, and the Ascension.  These subjects were carried out in
a modificd Fourteenth Century treatment with full colored subject
placed in an architectural niche, surrounded by a field of light tints, so
that these Nave Aisle Windows madulate the Light, but still do not
make the Church dark and gloomy.  The borders of the wimdows
were carried out in a full-colored jewel-like effect so as to bring the
rich colors of the Chancel down to the full-colored Rose Window in
the facade, tying the fenestration into a harmonious whole,  As m the
Chaneel Window, the motives are motives of detail and symbohisim
and are suggestive of the sca.
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THE FIVE VESTIBULE WINDOWS

I'HE WINDOWS in the northern vestibule depict the Venite, exultemus Donmine, the- first ‘Ci’iuiclc m Moming Prayer,
and are filled with a varicty of symbuls. '

In the first window, “O come let us sing unto the Lord 7 the futhful may be seen entering the House of God to sing

araiscs unto Him,

fu the second, “The Lord is a Great God, in Fhs hands are all the comners ol the carth,” there s depicted all v < ol
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wen, above whom stands the missionary with the Word, by which he draws all the corners of the carth into his hands.

In the third, "The sea is His and He made st and His hands prepared the dry land,”™ may be seen the seafaring man, the
furmer and the miner laboring in the stuff of which the carth consists.

-
mne.

The fourth window might well be called the Shepherd window, “He is our Gad, and we are the people of His pas-
From infancy through all the stages of man until his very old age the angel of the Lord may be scen shepherding him.

In the last window, “O worship the Lord, for He cometh with rightcousness to judge the world and the peoples with
tis truth,” the artist closes upon the high note that in God’s way there is ultimate justice and righteousness for all sorts and
anditions of men.  The high and low, the rich and poor, the Torgotten man and the man of position and power. .

The hope was that the Longport Church would be made so beautiful that all those who come to this resort to renew
acir physical bodies would be drawn to this spot and would also rebuild their souls and minds and be given a real conscious-

¢ss of their duty to their fellow-men.
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Newspaper articles pertaining to the installation of the stained glass.
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Miscellaneous historic photographs, maps and newspaper articles.




of the-Redeemer,

R

Church of the Redeemer, circa 1908-1941
(copied from a postcard)

-

EXTERIOR of the Church before it was enlarged in 1946 showing the memorial cross to the Rev, M.
M. Hankins.

Church of the Redeemer, circa 1941-1945
(taken from the Longport Historical Society Collection)

- T N o
THE PRESENT CHURCH and Sloaa Guild Hall, 1958. i

Church of the Redeemer, circa 1945-present
(taken from the Longport Historical Society Collection)
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CHURCH OF THE REDEEMER, LONGPORT, N.J.

Church of the Redeemer, circa 1912
(taken from the Atlantic County Sesquicentennial Celebration Program Booklet)

Church of the Redeemer, Longport. NJ
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Professor Joseph P. Remington placing the box in the cornerstone at the 1908 ceremonies
(taken from the Longport Historical Society Coliection)
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CORNER  STONE
OF CHURCH
LAID

Quite & Promiaent Body of Men Para
ticipated fn the Ceremonies at

Longport oa Satardsy

““The corner-stone of the Church of
the Redeemer a! Longport was lald
Baturday afternoon. with the appro-
prialeg ceremonies.

‘Bbhob Bcarborough, uwing to 1l
health, was unable t, officiate and
delegated the Ilev, John H. Townsend
of Atlantic City to conduct thAc ser-
vices. Addresses were made by Rov.
 Willlam P, Remington, Rev, H. D.
Speakman, of Bt. M«fk's, Pleasant-
ville; Rev. Bydney Goodman and Rav,
1. H. Benedict.

Joscph P. Remington read a atate-
ment showing the growth of 4 moves
ment for & church and a history of
the services held in lLongport from
the founding of this summer resort in
1833, The church wil} be {n Missjon
‘ftyle architecture and wiil by Teady
for worship at the beginnlng of next
sapason. Whan finlshed It will cost
wbout $10.000. ‘The ot was Wonated
Ly one of the trustees logether with
$3,000 to start {he bullding. $1,000
han been ralsed by the ladiss of Long-
‘port. Therd) was an ynusually largoe
attendance, many of {he gummer toal-
denta returning d<¢rom Philadelghis
and distant points for the oocasion.
Ow_!n: o continyed good weather of

e past montll. much p has

made: op. the strogture. s

‘The architects are Mesrs, Duhﬂat

ow‘r. a th; bullder ls Wm.
NFA R |

PRIZR Fi’cmn
DROPS ON AVE.

Jumis Larkios St to the Clty Hos..
pltal —Saflered From Paroxysms |
Snddmy

‘or tha avon-

3 lland

REPUBLIGALS QR
THE CODNTY |
BANDED

B4¢ Barbor CHy Forms a Strong Club) Y
to Fight for Gardaer and the
‘Whole Ticket

—_—
i Never before In the history of Egg
Harbior CRy has a political cumpalga
&wakencd awed Interest and enthus-
lasm »# 10 the present ane. Nog- be-
tng satiWicd wWith a Tuft, Bhorman,
Gardnor Club and In view of thodght
[ being waged against the re-electjon of
Congreéssmarm John J. Gardner, about
ifty »olld young Republlcam under
the leadership of’ Charles “Morgens
webk, & husiing young Republican
‘orkor. organized a John J, Gardner

o@fodfs: President, Charles Morgen-
weok; Vies Prosidont, Fred. Freder- |
1€ka; Seiretary, Hans C. Schilchiing;
Tronli&ror. Atert K Bayer* -

The objoct of the organhisation iy to |
1ond thelt efforts towards the re-clec-
tion of John I Gardher to the Ha«

me

for~piapy yoars has Hved upon hig.
tarm-neRr this city, and they have.

picdged thepmselves 10 stand by him.]
Tho‘#ﬂ
, Coqﬁtnod on Hu.o M

Mondey, Cckober 17, 1108 /
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Detalls are complety for the dedica-

D L N

Rapsibloan Clab with the !ollowlnt H

use of replementatives. AJf3RI
‘ot this club are ‘porsonattyt ™
aamafﬂed with Mr, Gardper, 1!“

A'HMJnc, 04 Daﬂey ?(‘CSS %

cmudms ;m Iy {"_. birteind rm

lolcoma Jotﬂ ‘Mm

Ecx Harboe, Loods thw and Ocean.
ville were ‘stirred. on- @aturdey night
ny._rousing: Repalijican «preetings, the
voigrs turiing qut I gucdly numbers,
All of the meotingd’awite highly . suc-
cessful and the shisthments of the |

voters clearnly de 1hat they,
are in hearty ,uylhgig with the pacty |

and the aths,

Thé dirst orexdd Wu‘mld at L«ds
Point, where two-bstids of mugic were
1. attendance, oae thia BogrIX Johnson -
bnni and the. duur‘ thn !‘ert Bepubllc
Sand..

3

,gkaitcmrtmb
m‘p«. Col.

} have Joased-a clud toom ' iy

soft’
the.J Gagdner and §
n‘;"Q‘! g&‘fxﬂ? dwa’ br it

Aﬂumo CHy, . dnswered {0 ) eall Of

(wore aade. Mugistraie himdtu’ot

g

he:

the ‘chalr with a tow words *bvut the} -

iyor Fredk. Bchuchradt.
ondinel. Himmeit 6 the Congroe-
madidate and urgdg the voters

t by Johm J. Gardner, who has

y been a loyal Republicsa ail |’
and. a

ne but a good fitend:
Jongrosaman. 16 was lerally

cneered, ‘espeocially whea he menﬂoud :

Mr Oa.rdnec"h name.
Then th meeting adjourned md the
club marchd to Aurora mu '\vtero

whtn e Phana tcbaw AP N

bu.
Da-
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—by Frank Butler—
.ongport 50 Years Old Today

INGPORT 18 pt. one line ......
Today is the 50th anniversary of
e incorporation of Longport as
norough, a form of government it
J1 retains, although it changed
>m council to commission In its
jcial form of borough adminis-
ation on June 18, 1812. As this
\s the same year in which Atlan-
s City changed to commission
vernment, Longport has its com-
ission election each four years
the same time as Atlantic City.
Longport. which is the end of
ysecon Island from Coolidge av.,
argate, to Great Egg Harbor Bay,
1s originally a part of Egg Har-
,r Township, and still shares its
seholder with that township, as
{s customary for boroughs under
ate laws, .
When Atlantic City was {ncor-
rated as & city in 1854, there
:s no other form of government
Absecon Island. It was all a
rt of Egg Harbor Township as
had been since 1710, when the
wnship was created as a part of
i Gloucester County. When At-
atlec City extended its original
undary in 1859, there were local
sidents who wanted the city to
ke in all of the Island, and it
uld have been dope then. Why it
sn't, no record exists, but it is
lieved that the Legislature re-

sed to consider such a move with ~

lantic City then being built up
lgog.s far down as Arkansas av.
]
is"Island “would be built up as it
today. .
More Land Then

When Matthew S. McCullough
ught of James Long the lands
tween what was then South At-
atle City (Now Margate) and
e bay, there was almost twice
much land in that end of the
and as there is now. That was

1882, and McCullough an-
unced his intention of making {t
beautiful resort. Maps of the
rly days of Longport showed its
enues running not only down to
:st av.,, but a fan-shaped section
streets ran beyond that with
oay drive to what amounted to
cee blocks more. .
What Atlantie City has been suf-
‘ing recently in erosion is in-
‘nificant alongside of what hap-
aed to Longport between 1900
4 1916. Terrific storm tides began
yding the end of the Island and
ot on eating away until the
:an had taken everything back
nost to 11th av.,, about half of
s+ borough. Erosion was only
'pped when the borough spent
enormous sum of money for
2 jetty that now juts out from
2 Island’'s western end.

Shristian ‘L. Frye, a YLongport
neer, still living in the borough,

s born on a farm on that sec- °

n later washed out by storms,
d the sand on which his birth-
e stood was deposited on Peck's
ach and became a part of Ocean
y, udding greatly to that re-
t's area, The land lost by Long-
't in this erosion would be worth
ny millions of dollars today,

The first building erected in
agport after its purchase from
1g was a restaurant at Beach
1 16th avs., long since torn down.
agport had practically no mea-
v land, as did the rest of the
ind, and it could all have been
ily transformed into -bullding

then had any idea that:. Oherholtzer family-were the prime

- movers {n the erection of the Hall,

OO [JUL' LCL
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lots with the removal of the sand Atlantic County,

NJ
dunes.
Big Lot Sale . .

The first big sale of building
lots was made in 1883, when a
speclal excursion train ran from
Philadelphia to what is now Mar-
gate, two years before that munici-
pality was incorporated - as the S
borough of South Atlantic City. e g
Carriages took the prospective o
buyers to the site of the sale. Amos
Dotterer and Mrs. S. L. Oberholt-
zer were the first to build cottages;
the former at 17th av, and the
latter at 15th.

The first train entered Longport
Aug.' 31, 1884; and the electric
trolley line ran in there in 1893.
"Between those dates, Longport was

1946

served by & line of “dummy" cars, ~
pulled by an engine, running out W
from Tennessee av. and there were W
several stations on the line be- W
tween. For many years after the d’:
trolleys started running all the
way through, the fare to Longport
was double that of the local rate; >
but now you can go from the Inlet > -
to 14th av, Longport, the end of
the line, for a single fare, 10 cents.

What is now Longport Borough
Hall, just beyond the end of the _u
trolley line, was built for a Hall ~=
of Natural Sciences. Many early %
residents there were deeply inter- &

ested in science, and the Agassiz
Association formed by them gave
much time to the study of marine
life and the flora of the land. The

-

which was used for divine services
and other meetings as well as for
the Associatior's purposes. This
building was enlarged when the
borough took it over for official
use, '

In 1895, Fred Bolce and his sister
built the Hotel Devonshire; and in
1896, Arvine H.  Phillips, who
founded the well-known Phillips
Company, of this city, bought con-
siderable land there. He laid out
a section called Oberon, which in
time was ' ahsorbed into the
borough. Three years before the [N
borough was incorporated, & water
and light company was formed to ,WL OQ'WWM
serve the area. ' N ' . :

Elect Counclt O\JJ

tThe first ;l:ﬁion after ltn;orpor- N
ation was on April 5, 1898, W
and Matthew S. McCullough be-~ W
came mayor. The councilmen were ;

A. H. Phillips, W
Ex&. Samuel e Y illiam  H. .

artlett and John R. Minnick. ,

Robert M. Elliott was elected tax's
assessor; James B. Townsend, col-
lactor: J. P. Remington Jr., justice
of-the peace; Willlam W. Lamborn,
borough clerk; Carlton Godfrey
.sollcitor; John P. Ashmead, sur-
veyor; and Daniel Yates, borough
marshal.

Until the Longport boulevard, as
it was called, was built by the
county from Atlantic City, in 1899,
there was nothing but a sand road
by which the section could be
reached, except by train or trolley;
or by driving down the beach be-
tween the low and high water
marks at low tide. Then, in 1914,
the Longport-Somers Point boule-
vard was opened, and from that
time on traffic has flowed freely
through the borough {o many
points. The Ocean City bridge
was ~opencd in 1928; and the
Somers Point - Beesleys Point
bridge, the same year, also taking °
much trafiic via Longport.
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By FRANK BUTLER
Authority on Local History

Friday Longport reached the)started to transform what was a|

60th anniversary ol its incorpora-

tion as & borough, which marked|sand Into something that would|

its separation as a municipality

from Egg Harbor Township. As|most insurmountable job, but he

a borough it still share its free-
holder with the township accord-

residential community and sum-

mer resort in 1882, but not in-ignd Beach Aves., and later the

carporated as a municlpality until

March 7, 1898,

James Long, of Philadelphia,
owned all the land in that end
of Absecon Island, from what s

now 24th Ave. to the bay. lle sold

ngport
‘Has 60th

INCORPORATED MARCH 7, 1898

As Borough

-7 0 55;/
Anniversary

this area to Matthew S. McCul-jbeach along the hard sand be
lough in 1882.>McCullough beganjtween high and low water marks;

3

to lay it out on paper and
wilderness of trees, bushes and
attract lot buyers. 1t was an al.|
succeeded in lime in making it

A restaurant was built at 16th

Aberdeen Hotel was erected. In
April of 1883, he arranged for a
speclal railroad excursion {rom
Philadelphia and had carriages to
meet the train in Atlantic City.
They took excursionists Down.

altractive by laying out streets)
ing to law. The land was pur-|and leveling sand dunes.
chased for development into a|FIRST RESTAURANT

and quite a few sales were mnde.
vAmong the first to build cot«
tages were Amos Dotterer, Mrs.:
IS. L. Oberholtzer, and Prot. J. R
Kemington and his sister, Caro-
line. On Aug, 31, 1884, the Camden
and Atlantic Railroad opened an
cxtension of its line from Atiantic
City to the new community, and
transportation developed in suffi-
cient demand that the rallroad
put into operation a schedule of
small trains all the way down
from the Tennessee and Atlantic
siation.

These trains, known long as
**dummies” because a small loco-

Al G

March [0 )

Church of the Redeemer
Longport Borough

Atlantic County,

NJ

ﬂzss
158

motive drew several small pas.
senger cars, ran for years (rom
Tennessee Ave., and the tracks
going out onto Atlantic Ave. still
lie under the gasoline station on
the corner.

SOCIETY ORGANIZED

Residents of the new. community
organized a soclety named the
Aggasiz Assn. in the home of Mrs.
Oberholtzer and it became known
as the Longport Assn. of Natural
Science, .which erected ‘a hall that
later became Longport Borough
Hall, now vanished, It stood where|
the trolley line made its turn to
come back to Atlantic City.-

cottage and later sold it to Arvine
H, Phillips, who in time developed
a tract he named. Oberon in the|

‘ usum end of the' area. He was
.{ithe founder of the Phillips Co.|

“l|which “stiit-carries o a- real-es-|

tate and insurance business.
James Hood and Elizabeth New-
port leased "the Aberdeen Hotel
and in 1836 the Bayview Club
erected a clubhouse at 17th Ave.
Somewhere about that time, the
U. S. government built a lifesav-
ing station at 23rd and Atlantic
Aves, The railroad built docks at
16th Ave. and started a ferry to
Ocean City, then the only way to
get there from Atlantic City ex-
cept by going 40 miles or more
around by way of Mays Lunding
and Tuckahoe.

and bridge were built between
Somers Point ‘and Ocean City, in

1913, The Shore Fast suburban
trolleys entered Ocean City in

* (rom

ated in 1898, McCullough became
mayor. Arvine H. Phillips, Joseph

nick were made councilmen; Wil-

ough engineer, and Daniel Yates,
borough marshal. Erosion by the
sea took away many blocks of the

In 1835, Long erected a beautiful|

The ferry did considerable busl+|
ness, and another was started.}
These ferries operated for manyj
years until” after a toll highway|

1907 and .that service took much|
business away - from the Ierrlu‘v

Longport. .
When the borough was incorpor-

P. Remington and John R. .Min.|

mer W. Lambarn, borough clerk.
and Carlton * Godfrey, solicitor:
+{{John P.'Ashmead was made bor-|

bay end of the area between 1900

and 1918,

]

}:’

e




